
COMMISSIONERS: TO ASSIST IN ESTABLISHING QUORUMS REQUIRED TO CONDUCT MEETINGS, PLEASE CONTACT THE PLANNING 
DEPARTMENT IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND A SCHEDULED MEETING. 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 10, 2024, 7:00 PM 
IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT 
REMOTE ATTENDANCE: VIA ZOOM MEETING, INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BELOW 

 
I.  CALL TO ORDER: 
II.  PUBLIC COMMENTS (on non-agenda items): 
III.  ACTIVE BUSINESS:  

1. Tax Incentive/Abatement Programs –  
a.  Review of Tax Abatement Application from Oakridge Dairy, LLC, to convert a pole barn to a 14,000 

square foot bottling facility and new machinery, equipment and motor vehicles at 80 Meadow Brook 
Road, APN 090-017-0000, in the Rural Agricultural Residential (RAR) Zone. 

b. Discuss CGS §12-81m Municipal Option to Abate up to 50% of Property Tax for Farming 
Operations. 

2. Report: Tolland County Chamber of Commerce 
3. Agricultural Initiatives 

a. Discuss Farmer Resources Informational Event held February 27, 2024, Town Hall Annex. 

4. Review Economic Development Sections from the 2023 Sustainable Connecticut Certification Action 
Overview Worksheet. 
a. Section 2.3 Inventory and Promote Local Products and Services. 
b. Section 2.4 Provide Resources and Supports to Local Businesses. 

5. CEDAS Best Practices – Customer Service Satisfaction Survey Results 
6. Report:  Current Economic Activity 
 

IV.  ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 
1. Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget & Expenditures Update. 

2. Approval of the January 10, 2024, Regular Meeting Minutes. 
3. Correspondence/Discussion: 

a. February 5, 2024, letter from the CT Siting Council for Petition 1589 for a 3MW solar facility at 360 
Somers Road, vote to issue declaratory ruling failed. 

b. January 28, 2024, Hartford Courant article for Oakridge Dairy “We want to be the farm of the 
future”. 

 
V.   ADJOURNMENT: 

Next regular meeting is scheduled for May 8, 2024. 
Instructions to attend meeting remotely via Zoom Meeting listed below. The agenda is posted on the Town of Ellington webpage 
(www.ellington-ct.gov) under Agenda & Minutes, Economic Development Commission. 
 
Join Zoom Meeting via link:    Join Zoom Meeting by phone:  
Link: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89353985928               1-646-558-8656 US (New York) 
Meeting ID: 893 5398 5928    Meeting ID: 893 5398 5928 
Passcode: 494617     Passcode: 494617 

 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 
TEL. (860) 870-3120        TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE     FAX (860) 870-3122 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89353985928
http://www.ellington-ct.gov/
































CONNECTICUT GENERAL STATUTE 

Sec. 12-81m. Municipal option to abate up to fifty per cent of property taxes of dairy farm, fruit 

orchard, vegetable, nursery, nontraditional or tobacco farm or commercial lobstering business 

operated on maritime heritage land. A municipality may, by vote of its legislative body or, in a 

municipality where the legislative body is a town meeting, by vote of the board of selectmen, and by 

vote of its board of finance, abate up to fifty per cent of the property taxes of any of the following 

properties provided such property is maintained as a business: (1) Dairy farm, (2) fruit orchard, including 

a vineyard for the growing of grapes for wine, (3) vegetable farm, (4) nursery farm, (5) any farm which 

employs nontraditional farming methods, including, but not limited to, hydroponic farming, (6) tobacco 

farms, or (7) commercial lobstering businesses operated on maritime heritage land, as defined in section 

12-107b. Such a municipality may also establish a recapture in the event of sale provided such recapture 

shall not exceed the original amount of taxes abated and may not go back further than ten years. For 

purposes of this section, the municipality may include in the abatement for such fruit orchard any 

building for seasonal residential use by workers in such orchard which is adjacent to the fruit orchard 

itself, but shall not include any residence of the person receiving such abatement. 







Section 4: Definitions 

(A) A Dairy Farm is a farm which has as its primary purpose the production of milk 

from cattle. It includes those fields used to grow feed used in milk production. 

(B) Termination of Dairy Farm Use: This means the termination of Dairy Farm 

status through the sale, termination of lease, or other cessation of Dairy Farm activity as 

herein defined. 

(C) Abatement Date: Abatement Date means July 1 of the first fiscal year in which 

the property qualifies for the abatement hereunder. 

Section 5: Assessed Components Qualifying for Abatement 

For the purposes of this ordinance a Dairy Farm consists only of those portions of the 

property devoted to active dairy farming or necessarily related to active dairy farming. 

This abatement shall apply only to that portion of the property utilized as tillable land (the 

production of feed used exclusively for milk producing animals); as permanent pasture (for 

such animals); as the principal residents and associated building lot; and such land and 

improvements that are exclusively used and dedicated to the normal operations of a Dairy 

Farm. 

Section 6: Assessed Components Which Do Not Qualify for Abatement 



To the extent that portions of the property contain assessed components which are not 

directly and exclusively used in dairy farming, such components will not be eligible for 

abatement under this ordinance. 

Section 7: Consideration for Qualification 

In determining whether an applicant meets the criteria of this ordinance, the Assessor shall 

consider the acreage of the farm; the dairy permit; the number and type of livestock; the 

quantity of milk sold; the gross income derived from milk production as compared to gross 

income from other activities; and/or the existence of a milk producing permit, dairy plant 

or milk dealer permit issued by the Connecticut Department of Agriculture. The abatement 

is available only to the owner or owners of the real property qualifying as a Dairy Farm 

hereunder. 

Section 8: Abatement 

The abatement shall be equal to fifty percent (50%) of the property taxes for the qualifying 

assessed components of the Dairy Farm. Any abatement will continue in force so long as 

permitted by State law or until such time as this ordinance is modified by the Board of 

Selectmen or until such time as the termination of the property's use as a Dairy Farm, 

whichever comes first. 

Section 9: Notice of Abatement on Land Records 

















 

1 

Town of Mansfield 

Code of Ordinances 

 “An Ordinance Regarding Farm Tax Abatements” 

Adopted July 23, 2012 

Effective 

Section 1.  Title. 
This chapter shall be known and may be cited as the “Farm Tax Abatements Ordinance.” 

 

Section 2.  Legislative Authority. 
This chapter is enacted pursuant to sections 7-148 and 12-81m of the Connecticut general 

Statutes. 

 

Section 3.  Findings and Purpose. 

The Town Council of the Town of Mansfield believes that agriculture and farming are vitally 

important to the quality of life, environment, and economy of the Town of Mansfield, and wishes 

to encourage farming in the Town. 

 

Connecticut General Statutes §12-81m allows towns to abate up to fifty percent of the property 

taxes on any dairy farm, fruit orchard, vegetable farm, nursery, or nontraditional farm, including 

a vineyard for growing of grapes for wine, and to recapture abated taxes in certain circumstances 

in the event of a sale of the property.  

 

The Town Council wishes to establish a mechanism whereby such tax relief may be granted to 

dairy farms, fruit orchards, vegetable farms, nurseries, or vineyards for growing of grapes for 

wine, as provided by law 

 

Section 4. Property Tax Abatement. 

Upon approval by the Tax Assessor and affirmative vote by the Town Council, the Town may 

abate up to fifty percent (50%) of the property taxes for any such dairy farm, fruit orchard, 

vegetable farm, nursery or vineyard.  

 

a.  Any abatement shall continue in force for five years, or until such time as  the dairy farm, 

fruit orchard, vegetable farm, nursery, or vineyard for growing of grapes for wine is sold, or 

until such time as the property ceases to be a dairy farm, fruit orchard, vegetable farm, 

nursery, or vineyard for growing of grapes for wine, or if any such business is deemed 

ineligible for an abatement based on a determination by the Tax Assessor that the beneficiary 

of the abatement has failed to show that they have derived at least fifteen thousand dollars in 

gross sales from such business or incurred at least fifteen thousand dollars in expenses related 

to such operation, with respect to the most recently completed taxable year of such business.  

Otherwise, any such abatement may be renewed for an additional five years by vote of the 

Town Council based on a proper reapplication made to the Office of the Tax Assessor at or 

near the end of the preceding five year term pursuant to the requirements for any initial 

application as set forth in this chapter. 

 



 

 2 

b.  The property owner receiving the abatement must notify the Tax Assessor  and Town 

Council in writing within thirty (30) days of the sale of the property or the cessation of 

operations as a dairy farm, fruit orchard,  vegetable farm, nursery, or vineyard for growing of 

grapes for wine. 

 

Section 5. Application for Property Tax Abatement. 

The Town of Mansfield may abate property taxes on dairy farms, fruit orchards, vegetable farms, 

nurseries, or vineyard for growing of grapes for wine, and recapture taxes so abated in the event 

of sale, in accordance with the following procedures and requirements:  

 

a.  Any action by the Town concerning the abatement of property taxes for dairy farms, fruit 

orchards, vegetable farms, nurseries, or vineyard for growing of grapes for wine, or the 

recapture of any taxes so abated, shall be done pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes §12-

81m, as such statute may be amended from time to time.  

 

b.  Any request for an abatement must be made by application to the Office of the Tax 

Assessor of the Town of Mansfield by the record owner of the  property, or a tenant with a 

signed, recorded lease of at least three years, which lease requires the tenant to pay all taxes 

on any dairy farm, fruit orchard, vegetable farm, nursery, or vineyard for growing of grapes 

for wine, as part of the lease.  

 

c.  In order for an abatement to apply for the tax year beginning July 1, 2013, the application 

must be submitted no later than October 1, 2012. For any tax year thereafter, the application 

must be submitted by October 1 of the preceding year. 

 

d.  An abatement is only available for dairy farms, fruit orchards, vegetable farms, nurseries, 

or a vineyard for growing of grapes for wine. The applicant must provide the Assessor with 

evidence to support the status of the property as a dairy farm, fruit orchard, vegetable farm, 

nursery, or a vineyard for growing of grapes for wine.  In determining whether a property is a 

dairy farm, fruit orchard, vegetable farm, nursery, or a vineyard for growing of grapes for 

wine, the Assessor shall take into account, among other factors: the acreage of the property; 

the number and types of livestock, vegetable production, fruit trees or bushes on the farm; the 

quantities of milk or fruit sold by the facility; the gross income of the farm derived from 

dairy, nursery, vegetable, or orchard related activities; the gross income derived from other 

types of activities; and, in the case of a dairy farm, evidence of Dairy Farm or Milk 

Producing Permit or Dairy Plant or Milk  Dealer Permit, as provided by Connecticut General 

Statutes § 22-173. All residences and building lots are excluded, but any building for 

seasonal residential use by workers in an orchard which is adjacent to the fruit orchard itself 

shall be included.  

 

e.  In addition to the aforementioned evidence that must be submitted to the Assessor, the 

applicant must also provide a notarized affidavit certifying that the applicant derived at least 

fifteen thousand dollars in gross sales from such eligible business or incurred at least fifteen 

thousand dollars in expenses related to such operation, with respect to the most recently 

completed taxable year of such business. For purposes of this Chapter, such eligible 

business” shall cumulatively include all properties upon which an individual entity is doing 



 

 3 

business as a dairy farm, fruit orchard, vegetable farm, nursery, or a vineyard for growing 

grapes for wine, otherwise, any such abatement shall be denied.  

 

Subsequently, in order to retain any such abatement, within thirty days of each annual 

assessment date in the Town of Mansfield, the applicant must provide such notarized 

affidavit certifying that the applicant derived at least fifteen thousand dollars in gross sales 

from such business or incurred at least fifteen thousand dollars in expenses related to such 

operation, with respect to the most recently completed taxable year of such business. 

Otherwise, any such abatement shall be terminated by the Assessor with notice to the Town 

Council. 

 

Section 6. Recapture. 

Upon sale of the property, and subject to the authority of the Town Council per this chapter to 

waive any such payment, the property owner must pay to the Town a percentage of the original 

amount of the taxes abated, pursuant to the following schedule:  

 

Number of Years Sale Follows Abatement Percentage of Original Amount of Taxes Abated for 

Given Tax Year Which Must be Paid  

More than 10 years, 0%  

Between 9 and 10 10%  

Between 8 and 9 20%  

Between 7 and 8 30%  

Between 6 and 7 40%  

Between 5 and 6 50%  

Between 4 and 5 60%  

Between 3 and 4 70%  

Between 2 and 3 80%  

Between 1 and 2 90%  

Between 0 and 1 100%  

 

a.  Upon affirmative vote by the Town Council, the Town may waive any of  the amounts 

which would otherwise be owed pursuant to the foregoing recapture provision if the property 

continues to be used as “farm land,” “forest land,” or “open space,” as those terms are 

defined in Section 12-107b of the Connecticut General Statutes, after the sale of the property.  

 

b.  The taxes owed to the Town pursuant to the recapture provisions of this chapter shall be 

due and payable by the record property owner/grantor to the Town Clerk of Mansfield at the 

time of recording of her/his deed or other instrument of conveyance. Such revenue received 

by the Town Clerk shall become part of the general revenue of the Town. No deed or other 

instrument or conveyance which is subject to the recapture of tax, as set forth herein, shall be 

recorded by the Town Clerk unless the funds due under the recapture provisions herein have 

been paid, or the obligation has been waived pursuant to the immediately preceding 

subsection herein.  

 

c.  The Tax Assessor shall file, not later than 30 days after abatement is approved by the 

Town Council, with the Town Clerk, a certificate for any such dairy farm, fruit orchard, 



 

 4 

vegetable farm, nursery, or vineyard land that has been approved for a tax abatement, which 

certificate shall set forth the date of initial abatement and the obligation to pay the recapture 

funds as set forth herein. Said certificate shall be recorded in the land records of the Town of 

Mansfield.  

 

Section 7. Right of Appeal. 

Any person claiming to be aggrieved by any action or inaction of the Tax Assessor of the Town 

of Mansfield regarding this chapter may appeal to the Board of Assessment Appeals of the Town 

of Mansfield in the manner set forth in Connecticut General Statutes section 12-111, as amended.  

Appeals from any decision of the Board of Tax Review may be taken to the Superior Court for 

the Judicial District of Tolland pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes section 12-117a, as 

amended. 

 

Section 8. Effective Date. 

Following its adoption by the Town Council, this Ordinance shall become effective on the 

twenty-first day after publication in a newspaper having circulation in the Town. 



 

 

FARMER RESOURCES INFORMATIONAL EVENT 
 

Interested in resources for your farm? Connecticut farmers and agricultural 
landowners are invited to attend Connecticut Farmland Trust’s first "Planning for 
the Future of Your Farm" informational session on Tuesday February 27th 
from 6:00-7:30 pm at the Ellington Town Hall Annex at 57 Main St, Ellington, 
CT. Join us to learn more about how the CFT farmland preservation process 
works, how to get started with farmland succession planning, and what kinds of 
grants and resources are available to help you and your farm grow. A Q&A session 
will follow and refreshments will be provided. 
 
Speakers: Kathleen Doherty - CFT Senior Conservation Manager 

Cat Wang - CFT Conservation Associate  
Kip Kolesinskas - CFT FarmLink Associate and Consulting Conservation 
Scientist 
Holly LaLime - Environmental Analyst at the CT Dept. of Agriculture 

 
Click here to register, or use the following URL online to register: 
https://interland3.donorperfect.net/weblink/weblink.aspx?name=E93568&id=70  
 
If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact CFT!  
Phone: (860) 247-0202 
E-mail: projects@ctfarmland.org 
 
Hosted by Connecticut Farmland Trust; Connecticut FarmLink; Connecticut Department 
of Agriculture; Town of Ellington, with funding from American Farmland Trust. 

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2finterland3.donorperfect.net%2fweblink%2fweblink.aspx%3fname%3dE93568%26id%3d70&c=E,1,Ezb2E1BN3_KkicWmvsx3i_gDwfNCQhQ4u3B6bF8aIFygzfnqmx9AJCV7ev0k8FgOLsmyFKyNwf7OPAMbP3HwpHVHxvUmUuoXAjaZ9oM1EWOn-NKuUk3SwTwi&typo=1
https://interland3.donorperfect.net/weblink/weblink.aspx?name=E93568&id=70
mailto:projects@ctfarmland.org


2022 FARM BUILDING EXEMPTIONS

New program as proposed, over 10.00 acres of land, and statutory requirement qualifications

TOTAL PA-490 # OF RES/COMM LAND PA-490 LAND BUILDNG OUTBUILDNG TOTAL TOTAL NET
# PROPERTY OWNER ST # STREET NAME ACRES ACRES BLDGS ASSESSMENT ASSESSMENT ASSESSMENT ASSESSMENT ASSESSMENT EXEMPT ASSESSMENT FARM USE QUALIFIES for proposed new program?

1 ABORN DIANNE    48 UPPER BUTCHER RD  3.62 2.7 5 $54,600 $2,210 $79,540 $29,070 $165,420 $28,470 $136,950 RENTED NO, rented

2 ABORN LAND LLC  18 MEADOW BROOK RD   53.2 52.28 6 $57,400 $46,900 $98,770 $128,210 $331,280 $127,310 $203,970 RENTED NO, rented

3 BURKE WILLIAM F + CHRISTA L 95 WAPPING WOOD RD   119.4 116.48 3 $73,120 $79,910 $90,380 $13,640 $257,050 $10,490 $246,560 BEEF/LIVESTOCK NO, beef & livestock

4 CHARTER PETER J + VERNA SOMERS RD  26.3 26.3 1 $0 $2,370 $0 $7,520 $9,890 $7,520 $2,370 BEEF/CROPS NO, structures already 100% exempt

5 CHARTER PETER J + VERNA A   SOMERS RD  46.11 46.11 6 $0 $48,740 $0 $18,700 $67,440 $18,700 $48,740 BEEF/CROPS NO, structures already 100% exempt

6 CHARTER PETER J + VERNA A   516 SOMERS RD  2.5 1.58 3 $44,100 $1,870 $109,740 $30,670 $186,380 $30,670 $155,710 BEEF/CROPS NO, bldg is an SFD, not exempt, outbldg is 100% exempt

7 COHEN HARRIS 1/4 + HARRIS +LOUISE 6/16+ 81 FROG HOLLOW RD    19.84 28.99 6 $57,400 $17,980 $71,760 $82,220 $229,360 $81,550 $147,810 TOBACCO NO, 2FD & utility stor taxable, other structures 100% exempt

8 COHEN HARRIS 1/4+ HARRIS +LOUISE 6/16+  107 FROG HOLLOW RD    18.92 28.07 3 $57,400 $15,690 $72,810 $18,050 $163,950 $16,270 $147,680 TOBACCO NO, SFD, 2 sheds, lean-to not exempt, all others 100% exempt

9 COHEN SANFORD   151 ABBOTT RD  57.97 57.05 4 $64,400 $47,560 $56,990 $46,310 $215,260 $42,200 $173,060 TOBACCO NO, SFD, garage & shed not exempt, all others 100% exempt

10 COHEN SANFORD   FROG HOLLOW RD    33.93 33.93 2 $0 $25,340 $45,700 $0 $71,040 $45,700 $25,340 TOBACCO NO, structures already 100% exempt

11 COHEN SANFORD + HARRIS 112 WEST RD 131.42 130.5 13 $44,110 $100,710 $94,930 $130,060 $369,810 $114,210 $255,600 TOBACCO NO, 2FD & garage not exempt, all other structurs 100% exempt

12 COHEN SANFORD CARL 61 FROG HOLLOW RD    30.95 30.03 4 $57,410 $11,490 $302,350 $70,180 $441,430 $76,180 $365,250 TOBACCO NO, SFD/garage/deck not exempt/farm structures 100% exempt

13 CONNORS DANIEL J 295 SOMERS RD  21.24 20.32 1 $44,100 $18,700 $109,900 $144,630 $317,330 $19,050 $298,280 POULTRY/HAY NO, poultry and hay

14 DECARLI RICHARD J 189 SADDS MILL RD 18.28 16.28 7 $72,820 $7,500 $376,570 $121,720 $578,610 $121,720 $456,890 HORSES/HAY NO, horses and hay

15 DERHAM JOHN+ BISSELL SALLY+ LAWRENCE TRS 300 SADDS MILL RD 16.98 16.06 4 $54,610 $4,370 $205,680 $34,090 $298,750 $29,590 $269,160 RENTED NO, rented

16 FARM HOLDINGS LLC 71 WEST RD 3.59 2.67 1 $44,090 $2,190 $0 $20,800 $67,080 $20,800 $46,280 RENTED NO, rented

17 GALE ANDREW J + GREGORY J   90 SADDS MILL RD 106.38 95.66 12 $257,350 $60,880 $111,870 $218,930 $649,030 $128,380 $520,650 LIVESTOCK/CROPS NO, SFD/util storage taxable, other structures 100% exempt

18 GARDNERS NURSERIES INC 132 FROG HOLLOW RD    96.86 96.86 1 $0 $119,700 $0 $13,310 $133,010 $13,310 $119,700 RENTED NO, rented

19 GARDNERS NURSERIES INC 137 FROG HOLLOW RD    54.98 54.06 4 $70,000 $79,770 $164,500 $26,920 $341,190 $120,870 $220,320 RENTED NO, rented

20 HATHEWAY CHARLES + HONORIA  HATHEWAY RD 10.47 5.87 1 $70,610 $8,220 $0 $13,440 $92,270 $13,440 $78,830 RENTED NO, rented

21 HOFFMAN DANIEL + TANYA 111 HOFFMAN RD 3.93 3.01 7 $61,600 $590 $148,440 $49,970 $260,600 $27,450 $233,150 RENTED NO, rented

22 HOFFMAN JOHN L + ERIN M 60 LOWER BUTCHER RD  4.54 3.62 5 $47,600 $4,280 $179,990 $55,500 $287,370 $33,280 $254,090 CORN/RYE/WHEAT NO, under 10 acres, no other parcel owned by same owner

23 J FOSTER FARM LLC 161 PINNEY ST  67.44 67.44 3 $0 $48,880 $0 $65,950 $114,830 $65,950 $48,880 TOBACCO NO, all farm strctures 100% exempt

24 J FOSTER FARM LLC 182 PINNEY ST  29.88 28.96 1 $44,100 $20,960 $83,360 $34,840 $183,260 $34,380 $148,880 TOBACCO NO, SFD & garage not exempt, all farm structures 100% exempt

25 L + M HOFFMAN PROPERTIES LLC 450 SOMERS RD  3.05 0 1 $78,950 $0 $232,040 $69,420 $380,410 $8,860 $371,550 RENTED NO, rented

26 MOSER ANGELA    31 FROG HOLLOW RD    11.65 9.73 3 $60,200 $6,720 $157,900 $105,960 $330,780 $15,010 $315,770 RENTED NO, rented

27 MOSER JAMES A   6 LOWER BUTCHER RD  27.28 27.28 1 $0 $31,950 $0 $50,870 $82,820 $29,030 $53,790 CORN/HAY NO, tobacco shed 100% exempt, 2nd shed not exempt per owner

28 OAKRIDGE DAIRY LLC 11 JOBS HILL RD 47.78 47.78 2 $0 $47,250 $6,890,210 $0 $6,937,460 $200,000 $6,737,460 DAIRY YES, exceeds $100,000 cap on current exemption

29 OAKRIDGE DAIRY LLC 76 JOBS HILL RD 52.04 51.12 2 $91,000 $45,010 $69,080 $20,460 $225,550 $20,460 $205,090 DAIRY NO, office not exempt, outbuildings 100% exempt

30 OAKRIDGE DAIRY LLC 33 JOBS HILL RD 97.44 96.52 5 $57,410 $40,820 $90,450 $503,940 $692,620 $325,790 $366,830 DAIRY YES, exceeds $100,000 cap on current exemption

31 OAKRIDGE DAIRY LLC 115 MEADOW BROOK RD   10.85 9.93 7 $57,400 $1,950 $125,620 $98,360 $283,330 $191,680 $91,650 DAIRY YES, exceeds $100,000 cap on current exemption

32 OAKRIDGE DAIRY LLC 80 MEADOW BROOK RD   34.43 34.43 3 $0 $17,270 $30,560 $190,510 $238,340 $190,510 $47,830 DAIRY NO, farm buildings 100% exempt, others not farm buildings

33 OAKRIDGE DAIRY LLC 8 HOFFMAN RD 43.9 43.9 8 $0 $12,540 $0 $185,070 $197,610 $185,070 $12,540 DAIRY NO, farm buildings 100% exempt, others not farm buildings

34 ONE EIGHTY SEVEN (187) ELLINGTON LLC    187 WINDSORVILLE RD   1.41 0 1 $71,720 $0 $99,170 $87,910 $258,800 $69,240 $189,560 STRAWBERRIES/XMAS TREES NO, under 10 acres, no other parcel owned by same owner

35 PRICHARD JAMES  PINNEY ST  14.16 14.16 1 $0 $15,500 $0 $11,430 $26,930 $11,430 $15,500 BEEF NO, beef

36 PRICHARD JAMES M 62 MAIN ST 0.33 0 10 $170,080 $4,820 $580,660 $53,770 $809,330 $13,570 $795,760 BEEF NO, beef

37 PRICHARD JAMES M 7 COUNTRY FARM LN   44.99 43 9 $72,210 $19,400 $445,140 $41,830 $578,580 $129,640 $448,940 BEEF NO, beef

38 ROTHE EDWARD A JR 5/8 + GENE W 3/8 222 WINDSORVILLE RD   47.19 46.27 13 $47,600 $48,210 $108,020 $118,690 $322,520 $118,690 $203,830 TOBACCO/VEGETABLES NO, SFD taxable, all farm structures 100% exempt

39 SEVENTY-ONE ABBOTT ROAD LLC 78 ABBOTT RD  25.06 24.14 4 $154,860 $13,400 $1,153,710 $129,410 $1,451,380 $122,960 $1,328,420 TOBACCO NO, warehouses not exempt, all farm structures 100% exempt

40 SEVENTY-ONE ABBOTT ROAD LLC 71 ABBOTT RD  173.09 173.09 13 $0 $243,750 $0 $318,600 $562,350 $318,600 $243,750 TOBACCO NO, all farm strctures 100% exempt

41 SHORES KENYON + HOWDEN-SHORES KIMBERLY  SCHOOL HOUSE RD   74.58 74.58 2 $0 $43,190 $0 $690 $43,880 $690 $43,190 ORCHARD NO, all farm strctures 100% exempt

42 SHORES KENYON + HOWDEN-SHORES KIMBERLY J 13 SCHOOL HOUSE RD   45.5 44.58 1 $57,400 $15,420 $220,610 $66,340 $359,770 $66,340 $293,430 ORCHARD NO, SFD taxable, all farm strctures 100% exempt.

43 SPIELMAN EARL O + GAIL A    121 ELLINGTON AVE 17.8 16.88 5 $67,760 $3,040 $101,280 $9,280 $181,360 $9,280 $172,080 GREENHOUSE/COWS/PIGS NO, greenhouse, cows, pigs

44 SPIELMAN LORI   175 ABBOTT RD  1 0 3 $64,700 $0 $0 $56,700 $121,400 $56,700 $64,700 HAY NO, hay, less than 10 acres.

45 SUNSET VALLEY FARMS LLC 55 KREYSSIG RD 41.36 40.44 6 $54,600 $22,260 $236,460 $215,210 $528,530 $188,130 $340,400 BEEF/PIGS/HAY NO, beef, pigs, hay

46 TWO SIXTY SEVEN (267) JOBS HILL RD LLC  267 JOBS HILL RD 44.89 43 3 $59,480 $23,020 $518,940 $8,160 $609,600 $208,160 $401,440 HORSES NO, horses

206 $3,707,330 $17,347,660
An additional $3,445,110 exemption is applied for Oakridge Dairy. 1 year left of Tax Abatement, this exemption has been removed in this listing to avoid skewing the numbers



1000.02.00220.10.50103
Part Time---Econ Devet Commission--

$1,600.00 $0.00 $780.00 $820.00 $0.00 $820.00
51.25%

1000.02.00220.20.60221
Advertising Printing---Econ Devet Commission--

$1,000.00 $0.00 ($125.00) $1,125.00 $0.00 $1,125.00
112.50%

1000.02.00220.20.60222
Dues & Subscriptions---Econ Devet Commission--

$750.00 $0.00 $750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0.00%

1000.02.00220.20.60223
Travel---Econ Devet Commission--

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0.00%

1000.02.00220.20.60232
Postage---Econ Devet Commission--

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0.00%

1000.02.00220.20.60233
Education---Econ Devet Commission--

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0.00%

1000.02.00220.20.60234
Professional Development---Econ Devet Commission--

$100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $0.00 $100.00
100.00%

1000.02.00220.20.60250
Contracted Services---Econ Devet Commission--

$1,500.00 $0.00 $313.00 $1,187.00 $0.00 $1,187.00
79.13%

1000.02.00220.30.60341
Office Supplies---Econ Devet Commission--

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
0.00%

1000Fund: $4,950.00 $0.00 $1,718.00 $3,232.00 $0.00 $3,232.00

Town of Ellington

Account Number / Description

General Ledger - On Demand Report

Budget Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance
Budget Balance

% Remaining Bud
Print accounts with zero balance

Include PreEncumbranceAccount Mask: ??????00220??????? AllAccount Type: Print Detail
3/1/2024From Date:Fiscal Year:   2023-2024 3/31/2024To Date:

Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date RangeInclude Inactive Accounts

Printed: 03/04/2024 10:28:48 AM rptNewOnDemandGLRptReport: 2023.1.34 Page: 1



Town of Ellington

Account Number / Description

General Ledger - On Demand Report

Budget Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance
Budget Balance

% Remaining Bud
Print accounts with zero balance

Include PreEncumbranceAccount Mask: ??????00220??????? AllAccount Type: Print Detail
3/1/2024From Date:Fiscal Year:   2023-2024 3/31/2024To Date:

Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date RangeInclude Inactive Accounts

End of Report

$4,950.00 $0.00 $1,718.00 $3,232.00 $0.00 $3,232.00Grand Total:

Printed: 03/04/2024 10:28:48 AM rptNewOnDemandGLRptReport: 2023.1.34 Page: 2



1-10-2024 EDC Minutes 
Page 1 of 4 

 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 10, 2024, 7:00 PM 
ZOOM MEETING 

 
PRESENT: Chairman Sean Kelly, Vice Chairman Donna Resutek, Regular Members Chris 

Todd, Jim Fay and David Hurley, and Alternate Amos Smith 
 
ABSENT:  Alternates Sam Chang and Michael Swanson 
 
STAFF  
PRESENT: Lisa M. Houlihan, Town Planner and Nathaniel Trask, Recording Clerk  
 
OTHERS 
PRESENT: None 
 
I.  CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman Sean Kelly called the Economic Development Commission 

meeting to order at 7:01 PM. 
 
II.  PUBLIC COMMENTS (on non-agenda items): None 
 
III.  ACTIVE BUSINESS:  

1. Tax Incentive/Abatement Programs – Discuss CGS §12-81m Municipal Option to Abate up 
to 50% of Property Tax for Farming Operations. 
a. Farm Building Exemption List dated November 11, 2023. 

 
Commissioners were given a list of the farms that would be eligible for the potential new 
property tax abatement program, which would allow eligible farms to abate up to 50% of 
property tax on farm buildings used for farm operations. According to the list, under the 
criteria currently being discussed by the commission, three properties are eligible for the 
program: 11 Jobs Hill Road, 33 Jobs Hill Road, and 115 Meadow Brook Road. All three 
of these properties are owned and operated by Oakridge Dairy LLC. Vice Chairman 
Resutek noted that Oakridge Dairy LLC is the farm that approached the Economic 
Development Commission to advocate for the property tax abatement program. 
 
Ms. Houlihan felt if a new program were put in place if it would encourage other farmers 
that have 10 or more acres to invest in new structures on their properties. She added 
later, when asked by Commissioner Hurley, that she did not know if programs like this in 
other towns incentivized farmers to invest in new structures. Chairman Kelly said there 
are currently three properties that could file for the 50% abatement. The property that 
Seth Bahler, owner of Oakridge Dairy LLC, is most concerned about is the new barn and 
Chairman Kelly believes that the Modern Milkman bottling facility will increase in 
assessed value in the future, which will increase property taxes on that facility. He added 

 STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
 

www.ellington-ct.gov 
 
TEL. (860) 870-3120         TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE   FAX (860) 870-3122 

 

 

http://www.ellington-ct.gov/


1-10-2024 EDC Minutes 
Page 2 of 4 

 

that the new program is an opportunity to do something for an important business in town 
without negatively impacting other taxpayers. 
 
Vice Chairman Resutek asked why the tobacco farm Seventy-One Abbott Road LLC at 
78 Abbott Road did not qualify for the abatement program. Chairman Kelly said it is 
because the property does not meet the required building value and acreage being 
discussed. Commissioner Hurley asked why a farm business that has multiple properties 
does not qualify. Chairman Kelly said it is because the taxes are assessed by the parcel, 
not as a part of the corporation. Commissioner Todd asked why Seventy-One Abbott 
Road LLC does not qualify even though it’s included on the farm building exemption list. 
Ms. Houlihan pointed out at the bottom of the spreadsheet list, John Rainaldi, the town 
assessor who compiled the list, noted that “There are three properties on this list that 
exceed the $100,000 MFB exemption cap,” and then listed 11 Jobs Hill Road, 33 Jobs 
Hill Road, and 115 Meadow Brook Road. She believed 78 Abbott Road, which is Line 17 
on the list, also exceeded the $100,000 MFB exemption cap by $29,000 because 
property taxes are only being abated on buildings, not land. She then realized that the 
spreadsheet noted that the property was already exempt for $122,960, so it would not 
qualify for the program based on the exemptions it already has. Commissioner Hurley 
said farms often have multiple parcels, so they should be assessed and determined if 
they qualify for the exemption program based on all their properties, not based on each 
individual parcel that a farm owns. Ms. Houlihan said she believed the law enabled the 
ordinance to be written as per property only, but Commissioner Hurley added that if 
properties that a single farm owned were bundled together and determined if they 
qualified for this program as a whole, then that could qualify more farmers for the 
program, especially if they have parcels that are individually under the 10-acre threshold, 
but, when bundled together, meet the minimum criteria for land. Chairman Kelly said this 
would help farms that have buildings located on one parcel but house equipment that 
supports another parcel, only that language would have to be developed so that 
buildings could qualify for the program if they are located on actively farmed parcels to 
avoid possible loopholes. Commissioner Todd said if the definitions are written 
differently, them Mr. Rainaldi can create a different list, but Commissioner Hurley said 
the commission might be wasting its time if the enabling legislation says parcels, not 
farms, are the only ones that qualify. 
 
Ms. Houlihan read some of the legislation, saying the legislation enables towns to “abate 
up to 50% of property taxes of dairy farm, fruit orchard, vegetable nursery, non-traditional 
or tobacco farm or commercial lobstering business operated on maritime heritage land.” 
The legislation does not say that only individual parcels are to be considered, so 
Chairman Kelly noted that Commissioner Hurley’s proposal could make sense and that it 
would not be difficult to keep track of the land each farm has when they apply for the 
abatement. Commissioner Hurley said the assessor may already have acreage 
information on file due to the abatement program on land. Ms. Houlihan said they have 
that data, but Chairman Kelly was unsure how many farms in town will qualify for the 
program based on combined acreage. 
 
Ms. Houlihan will ask the assessor, Mr. Rainaldi, to run the report again and include 
farms that have multiple parcels that, when combined, their acreage adds up to more 
than 10 acres. Chairman Kelly asked that when the report is completed if the assessor 
can include the farm, total acreage among all the parcels, and total assessment with the 
number of buildings. Commissioners were confused with some of the numbers on the 
spreadsheet, so Ms. Houlihan said she would ask if Mr. Rainaldi can be present for a 
future meeting. Commissioner Smith asked how long a farm must wait after an 
abatement expires before they can apply for another one. Chairman Kelly said the town’s 
current abatement program only applies to new constriction or improvements to an 



1-10-2024 EDC Minutes 
Page 3 of 4 

 

existing property. He added that the land that the Ellington Racquet Club will be 
constructed on is agricultural land and is taxed as such. Even with the 90% abatement 
on the building that the business will receive in the first two years of business, the town 
will receive more revenue in property taxes from that lot than it currently does. 
 
Ms. Houlihan said the town has a separate program exempting assessment for farm 
buildings of at least $100,000 in value that are exclusively used for farming.  
 
Chairman Kelly asked Commissioner Fay if he knew how much the town relies on 
revenue from farm property taxes. He said that it was not a key revenue source. 

 
Report: Tolland County Chamber of Commerce 

Nothing new to report. 

2. Agricultural Initiatives 

Nothing new to report. 
3. Review Economic Development Sections from the 2023 Sustainable Connecticut 

Certification Action Overview Worksheet. 
a. Section 2.3 Inventory and Promote Local Products and Services – Ellington Business 

List 
Commissioners were given a five-page report of the incorporated businesses in town. 
Ms. Houlihan said she removed home occupations from the report. Part of the initiative is 
to take the report on incorporated businesses and create a map for an extra five points 
from Sustainable CT, so she said she would talk with the GIS consultant about the cost 
to create a separate layer on the GIS map for the town’s businesses. This report fulfilled 
what is needed for Section 2.3.1 for the Sustainable CT certification. The next 
submission deadline for certification is in April. 

Section 2.4 Provide Resources and Supports to Local Businesses. 
Chairman Kelly asked if Shop Ellington would meet the criteria. Ms. Houlihan confirmed 
that it would. 

4. Connecticut Economic Development Association Best Practices – Customer Service 
Satisfaction Survey Results 

There have been no new surveys received recently. Commissioner Smith asked if the 
surveys were self-administered. Chairman Kelly said that it was. Ms. Houlihan explained the 
survey is only intended to critique Planning Department staff and many customer interactions 
involve staff from the building and fire marshal department. 

5. Report:  Current Economic Activity 
Chairman Kelly said there is a development proposal for the lot just south of Country Pure 
Foods. There will be some commercial use along the road with industrial use in the back of 
the lot. 

The owner of the other undeveloped parcel in the Big Y Plaza is looking to develop it. 
Chairman Kelly said he met with the people responsible for the property and that they are 
looking to do something meaningful on the property. 

Chairman Kelly reported that the resolution for the tax abatement for the Ellington Racquet 
Club was approved almost unanimously. One resident voted against it, but there was 
otherwise a lot of support for it. 

IV.  ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 
1. Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget & Expenditures Update. 



1-10-2024 EDC Minutes 
Page 4 of 4 

 

BY CONSENSUS, THIS AGENDA ITEM WAS TABLED UNTIL THE NEXT MEETING. 
2. Approval of the November 8, 2023, and December 13, 2023, Regular Meeting Minutes. 

MOVED (RESUTEK) SECONDED (SMITH) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 
APPROVE THE NOVEMBER 8, 2023, REGULAR MEETING MINUTES AS WRITTEN. 
MOVED (TODD) SECONDED (HURLEY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 
APPROVE THE DECEMBER 13, 2023, REGULAR MEETING MINUTES AS WRITTEN. 

3. Election of Officers. 

CHAIRMAN POSITION: 
MOVED (TODD) SECONDED (HURLEY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 
NOMINATE COMMISSIONER (KELLY) FOR CHAIRMAN OF THE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION FOR 2024.   
 
COMMISSIONER (KELLY) ACCEPTED THE NOMINATION. 
HEARING NO FURTHER NOMINATIONS, NOMINATIONS WERE CLOSED AND 
COMMISSIONER (KELLY) WAS ELECTED FOR CHAIRMAN OF THE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION FOR 2024. 
 
VICE CHAIRMAN POSITION: 
MOVED (KELLY) SECONDED (TODD) TO NOMINATE COMMISSIONER (RESUTEK) 
FOR VICE CHAIRMAN OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION FOR 
2024. 
 
COMMISSIONER (RESUTEK) ACCEPTED THE NOMINATION. 
HEARING NO FURTHER NOMINATIONS, NOMINATIONS WERE CLOSED AND 
COMMISSIONER (RESUTEK) WAS ELECTED FOR VICE CHAIRMAN OF THE 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION FOR 2024. 

4. Correspondence/Discussion: 
a. Shop Ellington 2023 Newsletter article 

 
There was a letter from the Planning Department in the January newsletter. Chairman 
Kelly said he thought the businesses saw some positive results and he is excited to see 
what happens next year. 

b. 2022 Grand List Summary Memo & Brochure 
Chairman Kelly said he thought Eversource was the town’s biggest taxpayer since they 
pay property taxes on telephone poles. Commissioner Smith also said he believed 
Dymotek was on the leaderboard. Ms. Houlihan noted that the top three taxpayers are all 
multi-family developments. 

Ms. Houlihan said the solar farm on Middle Road was approved by the Connecticut 
Siting Council. 

V.   ADJOURNMENT: 
 

MOVED (SMITH) SECONDED (RESUTEK) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 
ADJOURN THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION MEETING AT 8:04 PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
_________________________ 
Nathaniel Trask, Recording Clerk 














	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 14, 2024, 7:00 PM
	remote online mEETING, INSTRUCTIONS to attend PROVIDED BELOW
	I.  CALL TO ORDER:
	2024-01-10 EDC Minutes - Final.pdf
	WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 10, 2024, 7:00 PM

	2024_03-13 EDC Agenda.pdf
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	WEDNESDAY, MARCH 13, 2024, 7:00 PM
	IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT
	REMOTE ATTENDANCE: VIA ZOOM MEETING, INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BELOW
	I.  CALL TO ORDER:

	2024_03-05 - Farm Building Exemption List 2022 Grand List with additional reductions with acreage.pdf
	Sheet1

	2024_04-10 EDC Agenda - Final.pdf
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	WEDNESDAY, APRIL 10, 2024, 7:00 PM
	IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT
	REMOTE ATTENDANCE: VIA ZOOM MEETING, INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BELOW
	I.  CALL TO ORDER:

	2024_04-10 EDC Agenda - Final.pdf
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	WEDNESDAY, APRIL 10, 2024, 7:00 PM
	IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT
	REMOTE ATTENDANCE: VIA ZOOM MEETING, INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BELOW
	I.  CALL TO ORDER:

	2024_04-04 Application w-backup docs.pdf
	20240404132030636
	20240404132043129




